
 

 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday 17 October 2018 at 6.30 pm 
Committee Room A, Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent  TN1 1RS 

 

 

Members:  Councillor Podbury (Chairman), Councillors Hastie (Vice-Chairman), Ellis, Gooda, 
Dr Hall, Lewis-Grey, Simmons and Mrs Thomas 

Quorum:  3 Members (to include either the Leader or Deputy Leader) 

 
 

1   Apologies 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

2   Declarations of Interest 
To receive any declarations of interest by members of the Council in items on the 
agenda. For any advice on declarations of interest, please contact the Monitoring 
Officer. 

3   Notification of Visiting Members wishing to speak 
To note any members of the Council wishing to speak, of which due notice has been 
given in accordance with Council Meeting Procedure Rule 18, and which items they 
wish to speak on. 

4   Minutes of the meeting dated 6 July 2016 
To approve the minutes of a previous meeting as a correct record. 
The only issue relating to the minutes that can be discussed is 
their accuracy. 

(Pages 5 - 8) 

5   Change of Name of Brenchley Parish Council (Pages 9 - 14) 

6   Urgent Business 
To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent, for the reasons to 
be stated, in accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 

7   Date of Next Meeting 
To note that the next scheduled meeting is Wednesday 9 January 2019 at 6.30pm. 

 
Mark O'Callaghan Town Hall 
Democratic Services Officer ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
Tel:      (01892) 554219 Kent   TN1 1RS 
Email:  mark.ocallaghan@tunbridgewells.gov.uk  

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

mod.gov app – go paperless 
 

Easily download, annotate and keep all committee paperwork on your 
mobile device using the mod.gov app – all for free!. 
 

Visit   www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp   for details.  

 
All visitors wishing to attend a public meeting at the Town Hall between the hours of 9.00am 
and 5.00pm should report to reception via the side entrance in Monson Way.  After 5pm, 
access will be via the front door on the corner of Crescent Road and Mount Pleasant Road, 
except for disabled access which will continue by use of an 'out of hours' button at the entrance 
in Monson Way 
 
Notes on Procedure 
 
(1)  A list of background papers appears at the end of each report, where appropriate, 

pursuant to the Local Government Act 1972, section 100D(i). 
 
(2) Members seeking factual information about agenda items are requested to contact the 

appropriate Service Manager prior to the meeting. 
 
(3) Members of the public and other stakeholders are required to register with the Democratic 

Services Officer if they wish to speak on an agenda item at a meeting.  Places are limited 
to a maximum of four speakers per item.  The deadline for registering to speak is 4.00 pm 
the last working day before the meeting.  Each speaker will be given a maximum of 3 
minutes to address the Committee. 

 
(4) All meetings are open to the public except where confidential or exempt information is 

being discussed. The agenda will identify whether a meeting or part of a meeting is not 
open to the public. Meeting rooms have a maximum public capacity as follows: 

 Council Chamber: 100, Committee Room A: 20, Committee Room B: 10. 
 
(5) Please note that the public proceedings of this meeting will be recorded and made 

available for playback on the Tunbridge Wells Borough Council website. Any other third 
party may also record or film meetings, unless exempt or confidential information is being 
considered, but are requested as a courtesy to others to give notice of this to the 
Democratic Services Officer before the meeting. The Council is not liable for any third 
party recordings. 

 
Further details are available on the website (www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk) or from 
Democratic Services. 

 

If you require this information in another format 
please contact us, call 01892 526121 or email 

committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk 
 
Accessibility into and within the Town Hall – There is a wheelchair accessible lift 
by the main staircase, giving access to the first floor where the committee rooms are 
situated. There are a few steps leading to the Council Chamber itself but there is a 
platform chairlift in the foyer. 
 
Hearing Loop System – The Council Chamber and Committee Rooms A and B 
have been equipped with hearing induction loop systems. The Council Chamber also 
has a fully equipped audio-visual system. 

Page 2

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk


1 
 
 

 
 

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 6 July 2016 
 

Present: Councillor Mrs Thomas (Chairman) 
Councillors Gray (Vice-Chairman), Bland, Hastie, Horwood, Lewis-Grey and Simmons 

 
Officers in Attendance: Paul Taylor (Director of Change and Communities), Nicky Carter 
(Head of HR) and Ashton West (Democratic Services Officer) 
 
Other Members in Attendance: Councillor Scholes 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
GP1/16 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Podbury. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
GP2/16 
 

No declarations of interest were received.  
 

NOTIFICATION OF VISITING MEMBERS WISHING TO SPEAK (IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 18) 
 
GP3/16 
 

No visiting members had registered to speak at the meeting. 
 

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
GP4/16 
 

The minutes of the previous meeting of the General Purposes Committee, 
dated 20 January 2016, were submitted. 
 
Councillors Gray, Hastie and Horwood brought to officers’ attention that 
certain issues and recommendations relating to processes and fees for 
recruiting new staff in Property and Estates Services remained outstanding 
from the previous meeting. Nicky Carter, Head of HR, said that she wold look 
into these issues and report back to the Committee. 
 
That aside, the minutes of the previous meeting were approved as correct. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the General Purposes Committee dated 20 January 2016 
be approved as a correct record. 
 

HR STRATEGY 2016-2020 
 
GP5/16 
 

Nicky Carter, Head of Human Resources (HR), had submitted a report 
outlining the Council’s HR Strategy for the period 2016-2020. 
 
Paul Taylor, Director of Change and Communities, explained that this 
process needed to be carried out every five years in order to ensure that the 
Council’s HR Strategy remained relevant to the changing environment in 
which the Council operated. The purpose of this strategy, he said, was to set 
out what the Council’s aims for the future were and how they proposed to 
achieve them. He stated that, at the current time, both local government and 
the wider job market were experiencing a period of unprecedented change, 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2 
 
 

 
 

and that this was especially true for the Council due to its ambitious Five Year 
Plan. He said that the strategy had identified key challenges such as 
becoming an employer of choice, working to increase the level of skills and 
innovation across the workforce, and dealing with a larger percentage of 
employees being of an older age. He informed members that certain actions 
were required to address these challenges, including attracting well-suited 
candidates, investing in staff development, and working to improve staff 
wellbeing and engagement. He invited questions from members. 
 
Councillor Horwood enquired where, if the need arose for additional funding, 
this request would need to go. Mr Taylor answered that, although he believed 
that additional funding was unlikely to be required, this would be a decision 
taken by Cabinet. Councillor Horwood noted that this step had not been 
included under ‘Cross-Cutting Issues and Implications’ and asked if it could 
be added, to which Mr Taylor replied that it would be. 
 
Councillor Horwood also sought clarification as to who held responsibility for 
assessing risk management. Mr Taylor replied that the HR Strategy was not 
specifically identified as a risk on the corporate risk register, however, he felt 
that it would have been a cross-cutting issue in a number of the other specific 
risks. He informed members that he would look into this matter further.  
 
Councillor Simmons queried if there were any numerical figures in the report 
that showed the expected number of employees for the period 2016-2020. 
Mrs Carter answered that the numbers in the report related to the current 
number of employees, and Mr Taylor expected that this figure would have 
decreased by 2020. 
 
Councillor Lewis-Grey asked if the Council was confident that it was paying a 
market wage to all employees, and whether it was not reacting too slowly to 
changing rates. Mrs Carter replied that wages were benchmarked every two 
years and that this ensured that the Council’s payment procedures were 
flexible and kept pace with the market. 
 
Councillor Simmons commented that the amount of financial remuneration, 
although important, was not the only factor that employees were likely to 
consider when assessing a job’s suitability for them. Mrs Carter agreed, and 
stated that other priorities which impacted on quality of life, such as flexible 
working hours, were also important. 
 
Councillor Hastie enquired as to whether the salary benchmark used was 
calculated using a standard salary rate per year or a total amount which 
would take into account certain benefits and/or bonuses. Mrs Carter stated 
that both were used and that the Council also benchmarked against other 
public sector organisations of a similar size and of private sector companies 
in the area. 
 
Councillor Bland asked if the Council benchmarked on indicators other than 
salary, including training. Mr Taylor said that they did not benchmark on 
training, but added that a training officer had recently been recruited and that 
this was an area where the Council was keen to develop. Councillor Bland 
expressed his view that any benchmarking where training was concerned 
would be better achieved by using the amount of time, as opposed to money, 
spent doing so. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



3 
 
 

 
 

Councillor Horwood questioned how the Council accounted for workers 
employed on joint contracts of employment, i.e. those working in partnership 
with other local authorities. He also enquired as to whether there was any 
correlation between sickness and age. Mrs Carter said that the current figures 
were for staff directly employed by Tunbridge Wells Borough Council. She 
said that some of these may well be partnership staff that are based at 
Tunbridge Wells, but that this depended on the particular partnership and that 
there was no uniform allocation. In answer to the second question, she 
advised that there was no correlation between age and staff sickness levels. 
 
Councillor Lewis-Grey asked when gender pay gap data would be published, 
to which Mrs Carter replied that this is done annually by the Equalities Officer. 
She added that last year the Council’s gender pay gap was smaller than in 
other similar sized organisations. 
 
Councillor Hastie enquired if the Council was a living wage employer, to 
which Mrs Carter answered that it was insofar as all salaries paid equated to 
the living wage.  
 
Councillor Gray asked if the Council took on apprentices, as he had noted 
from the report that they had none at present. Mrs Carter responded that the 
Council had taken on apprentices, but that two had recently either finished or 
left. She stated that they were waiting for the government to introduce an 
apprenticeship levy, expected soon, after which they would recommence 
employing apprentices. Councillor Thomas enquired as to where these 
apprentices had been based in the Council, to which Mrs Carter replied that 
they had been mostly in Revenues and Benefits, Facilities, and the Assembly 
Hall Theatre. 
 
Councillor Lewis-Grey concluded the questioning through seeking to confirm 
that HR had the necessary tools in order to improve. Mrs Carter said that, 
with the new training manager now on board, she believed that they did have 
the resources needed. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the HR Strategy 2016-2020 be approved. 
 
 

URGENT BUSINESS 
 
GP6/16 
 

There were no items of urgent business. 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING: WEDNESDAY, 26 OCTOBER 2016 
 
GP7/16 
 

RESOLVED:  
 
That the next General Purposes Committee meeting take place on 
Wednesday, 26 October 2016. 
 

 
 NOTE: The meeting concluded at 19:00. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

General Purposes 
Committee 

17 October 2018 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? Yes 

 

Change of Name of Brenchley Parish Council 
 

Final Decision-Maker General Purposes Committee 

Portfolio Holder(s)  Councillor David Jukes, Leader of the Council 

Lead Director  Paul Taylor, Director of Change and Communities 

Head of Service Patricia Narebor, Head of Legal Partnership 

Lead Officer/Author Gary Rowland, Trainee Lawyer (Corporate Governance) 

Classification Non-exempt 

Wards affected Brenchley and Horsmonden  

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 

 

1. Note the change of name request received from Brenchley Parish Council; and 

 

2. Agree to the request to change the name of Brenchley Parish Council to Brenchley 
and Matfield Parish Council, pursuant to Section 75 of the Local Government Act 
1972. 

 

  

Explain how this report relates to the Corporate Priorities in the Five Year Plan: 

 To support an inclusive borough by engaging and working with parish and town 
councils. 

  

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Management Board 26 September 2018 

General Purposes Committee 17 October 2018 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 

Change of Name of Brenchley Parish Council 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 To report the request from Brenchley Parish Council to change the name of the 

Parish Council to Brenchley and Matfield Parish Council, pursuant to Section 75 
of the Local Government Act 1972 and to seek the approval of the Committee to 
make the change. 

 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Brenchley Parish Council has requested that the Borough Council undertakes 

the statutory process to give approval to a change of name to “Brenchley and 
Matfield Parish Council”.  This decision was resolved at their annual meeting on 
8 May 2017. 
 

2.2 Section 75 of the Local Government Act 1972 gives district councils the power 
to change the name of a parish situated in it’s district at the request of the 
parish council. The exercise of the power is discretionary and no process is set 
out in the Act. The only statutory requirements are that the district council must 
give notice of any change of name to the Secretary of State, the Director 
General of the Ordnance Survey and to the Register General and that the 
district council shall publish the change of name in the parish and elsewhere as 
they consider appropriate. 

 

2.3 The functions of the General Purposes Committee are set out in Part 3 of the 
Council’s Constitution at section 6. One of those functions relates to the name 
and status of areas and individuals contained in Function E of Schedule 1 to the 
Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities)(England) Regulations 2000 
which includes the power to change the name of a parish. The Committee, 
therefore, has the authority to exercise the power at the request of Brenchley 
Parish Council. 

 

2.4 For some time it has been recognised that the current name of the Parish 
Council serving the residents of Brenchley Parish does not incorporate the 
name of the village of Matfield.  The Parish Council has resolved to seek to 
change its name in order to recognise the equal importance of the villages it 
serves.  Community engagement events relating to the Neighbourhood 
Development Plan have been arranged in both villages and there is a Brenchley 
and Matfield school and a Brenchley and Matfield website.  It is felt that the 
proposed name change will further endorse this connection. 

 

2.5 Brenchley Parish Council emailed a formal request to the Borough Council on 8 
June 2018, requesting approval of the name change.  

 

 
 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



 

3. AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 
3.1 Do nothing. The request will be declined and Brenchley Parish Council will 

retain it’s existing name 
 

3.2 Agree to the request.  Next steps can be taken in order to change the name of     
Brenchley Parish Council to Brenchley and Matfield Parish Council as set out in 
the report at paragraphs 6.1, 6.2 and 6.3. 

 

 
4. PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 Agree to the request, thus enabling the change of name to take effect. 
 

 
5. CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK 
 
5.1 Whilst not essential to the process, Brenchley Parish Council carried out a 

consultation with local residents.  This consultation lasted for three weeks, 
ending on 21 May 2017 and involved notices being place on boards in the 
villages, the parish website, Facebook and the circulation of a news letter via 
email to 330 recipients. 

 

5.2 During the consultation process, fifteen responses were received, all of which 
were positive.  These responses can be seen attached at Appendix A. 

 

 
6. NEXT STEPS: COMMUNICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

DECISION 
 
6.1 If the recommendation is agreed, confirmation of the name change will be sent 

to the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government, the 
Director General of the Ordnance Survey and the Registrar General. 

 
6.2 The change of name shall then be published by the Borough Council on their 

website and elsewhere as deemed appropriate.   
 

6.3 The final step in the process is for the Borough Council to revise their register of 
parish councils. 

 

 
7. CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

Legal including 
Human Rights 
Act 

The request has been dealt with pursuant to 
Section 75 of the Local Government Act 
1972 and in line with the Council’s 
Constitution. If the requested change of 
name is agreed, the Council must give the… 

 

Keith Trowell, 
Team Leader 
(Corporate 
Governance), 
MKLS 

5 October 2018 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

notice and publish the change as set out in 
the body of the report. 

Finance and 
other resources 

There are no relevant issues identified 
within this report 

Gary Rowland, 
Trainee Lawyer 
(Corporate 
Governance) 

5 October 2018 

Staffing 
establishment 

There are no relevant issues identified 
within this report 

Risk 
management   

There are no relevant issues identified 
within this report 

Data Protection There are no relevant issues identified 
within this report 

Environment  
and sustainability 

There are no relevant issues identified 
within this report 

Community 
safety 

There are no relevant issues identified 
within this report 

Health and 
Safety 

There are no relevant issues identified 
within this report 

Health and 
wellbeing 

There are no relevant issues identified 
within this report 

Equalities There are no relevant issues identified 
within this report 

 
 
8. REPORT APPENDICES 
 
The following documents are to be published with and form part of the report: 
 

 Appendix A: Consultation responses  
 

 
9. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
None 

Page 10

Agenda Item 5



 
Consultation Responses 
 

 I think it is a very good idea to change the name to include Matfield 
 

 Just to say that I would support the proposed change of name to Brenchley 
and Matfield Parish Council. 

 

 It seems eminently sensible, if it is not too costly to include Matfield as well as 
Brenchley in a new Parish name 

 

 I agree with the proposed name change, which is more inclusive for current 
residents and less confusing for people new to the area. 

 

 Totally support it. About time that Matfield features! 
 

 We write to support the move to change the name to "Brenchley and Matfield 
Parish Council" as it better reflects the areas covered by the PC, a bit more of 
a mouthful but worth it! 

 

 As a local resident I must admit I had assumed the name of the PC was both 
Matfield and Brenchley and cannot see any reason why this should not be so. 

 

 I think changing the name to include Matfield is an excellent, and well over-
due, idea. 

 

 We fully endorse the change of the Parish Council name to include Matfield. 
 

 As a Matfield resident I think the proposed change from Brenchley PC to 
Brenchley and Matfield PC an excellent and long overdue proposal. 

 

 You will not be surprised to know that I agree with the proposed change of 
name. Thank you for suggesting it. 

 

 I support the proposed change of name to Brenchley and Matfield Parish 
Council. 

 

 This is just to register our support for changing the name of the Parish Council 
to include Matfield and thus better reflect the makeup of the 'constituency' 
covered by the Parish Council. 

 

 I agree with this proposal. There has always been some confusion and 
although I would prefer ‘Matfield and Brenchley’ I am happy with ‘Brenchley 
and Matfield’. 

 

 It seems very sensible to include Matfield in the title of The Parish Council. 

Page 11

Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting dated 6 July 2016
	5 Change of Name of Brenchley Parish Council
	5 Appendix A - Consultation Responses


